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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of IDL Explosives Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDL Explosives Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including
a summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “ financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025,
its loss (including other comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 47 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company has
been incurring continued losses resulting in entire erosion of its net worth. Moreover current
liabilities are in excess of current assets by Rs. 6,216.03 lakhs. These conditions along with other
matters as set forth in the said note indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore the
Company may not be able to realise its assets and meet with liabilities in the normal course of
business. The financial statements are, however, for the reasons stated in the aforesaid note

___ have been prepared by the Management on going concern basis and the financial statements

; / T '-'?Egoes not include any adjustment in this respect.

-

opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Report of Board of Directors, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstament therein,
we are required communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary
actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internat
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1)

(2)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in “Annexure 1”,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for certain matters in
respect of audit trail (edit log facility) as described in paragraph 2(j)(vi) below;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended;

e. The matter described under Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern section above,
in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquatified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

g. The observations relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in point 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act
and paragraph 2(j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014;

h. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure 2”;

i. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid or provided any remuneration to its directors during the year
and accordingly reporting requirements of section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable;
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J. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 41 on Contingent Liabilities to the financial statements;

(ii)The Company has made provision, as required under the appticable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts;

(ifi)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv) (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement;

(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting
the compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.
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(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that
audit trail was not enabled at database level for accounting software to log any direct
data changes. Further, the Payroll Application does not have any audit trail feature.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

-

At

= Ih’.’:‘.‘;;\-(_l |

Snehal Shah o>
Partner

Membership No. 048539

UDIN: 25048539BMLBRC4487

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 21, 2025
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of IDL Explosives Limited (“the
Company”) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information,
explanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i)
(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment to
cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification
during the year and were physically verified by the management during the year. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of lessee),
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) and/or Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31,
2025 for holding any Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i)  (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year, except for goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third
parties. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have
been obtained by the management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification carried out during the year.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees during the year, in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis
of security of current assets. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks and/or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

(iii) During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.
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(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any
guarantee and security to any person. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order with respect
to compliance with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant
of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, is not applicable
to the Company.

) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under

sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and rules thereunder. We have broadly reviewed
such records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(vii)

(@) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues
applicable to it, in all cases during the year.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, GST, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues
applicable to it, were outstanding, at the year-end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues outstanding with respect to provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess, on
account of any dispute, are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of Nature of Amount | Period to Forum where Remarks,
the statute | the dues (Rs.in | Which dispute is pending if any
a lakhs) the
amount
relates
Central Sales Tax 7.20 2011-13 Tribunal, Cuttack
Sales Tax | (VAT)
Act, 1956
Central Sales Tax 18.98 2015-16 Commissioner  of
Sales Tax | (VAT) Commercial tax,
Act, 1956 Ranchi
Entry Tax | Entry Act 29.18 2011 to | Tribunal, Cuttack
Act 2013
Goods and | Goods and 4.08 2017-18 Additional
Service Tax | Service Tax Commissioner,
Act, 2017 Udaipur
Income Tax | Income Tax | 3,166.44 2023-24 National Faceless
Act, 1961 Appeal Centre
(NFACQ)
Income Tax | Income Tax 9.06 2021-22 Centralized
Act, 1961 processing center

We have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the books
of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiif)

(xiv)

@)

(b)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year and there

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

were no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, short-term funds
to the extent of Rs. 1,254.19 lakhs have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined
under the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined
under the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(f) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause
{(x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government
by the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or up to the date of this report.

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

We have considered the Internal Audit Reports of the Company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(b)

India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding
financial year amounting of Rs.1,104.63 lakhs and Rs. 1,813.89 lakhs respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, we believe that material uncertainty exists as on the date of this audit
report as the Company has incurred losses in the current as well as in previous year
and its net worth has been completely eroded as on March 31, 2025 and due to which
the Company may not be capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date
of the audit report. We draw attention to paragraph “Material Uncertainty in relation
to Going Concern” in our main audit report of even date regarding the applicability
of the going concern assumption.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Snehal Shah
Partner
Membership No. 048539
UDIN: 25048539BMLBRC4487
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 21, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of IDL Explosives Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of IDL Explosives
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Snehal Shah

Partner

Membership No. 048539
UDIN: 25048539BMLBRC4487
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 21, 2025




IDL Explosives Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at Asat
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 3| 5,185.80 5,100.49
Capital work-in-progress 3 1,743,87 1,094.72
Goodwill 4 105.63 105.63
Other intangible assets S 29.04 38.21
Financial assets
(i) Other non-current financial assets 7 216.85 249.43
Deferred tax assets (net) 19 1,052.52 1,302.56
Income lax assets (net) 20 282.35 192.34
Other non-current assets 8 24.13 205.92
‘Tolal non-current assets 8,640.19 8,289.30
Current assels
Inventories 9 3,330.19 4,287.95
Financial asscls
(i) Trade receivables 10 3,768.31 6,666.46
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,362.04 319.97
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 237.84 651.22
(iv) Other current financial assets 7 89,72 68.87
Other current assets 8 1,503.82 1,615.86
‘T'otal current assets 10,291.92 13,610.33
‘Total assets 18,932.11 21,899.63
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Lquity
Equily share capital 13 786.50 786.50
Other equity 14 (1,606.88) 326.90
‘Tolal equity (820.38) 1,113.40
Liabilitics
Non-current liabilities
Finanwial Liabilities
Borrowings 15 2,965.67 2,873.83
Provisions 17 278.87 27931
‘I'olal non-current liabililies 3,244.54 3,153.14
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 25 8,501.22 11,015.41
(i) Trade payables 26
- tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and simall ) 893.89 504.96
enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than rnicro 5,305.64 4,336,92
enlerprises and small enterprises
(iif) Other current financial liabilities 16 1,612.08 1,541,22
Other liabilities 24 89.53 137,34
Provisions 18 105.59 97.24
‘T'otal current liabililies 16,507.95 17,633.09
Total equily and liabilities 18,932.11 21,899.63
a}fmrale information and material accounting policies 1&2

The notes referred Lo above form an inlegral part of the financial statements

As per ouy reporl of even dale attached
for HARIBIIAKTT & CO. LLP
Clurtered Accountants

ICAI Tgrm Registration number:10523W/W100048

Shehal Shah
Partner

Memnbership nuniber: 018539

Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 21, 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
TDL Explosives Limited
CIN No. U28132TG2010PLC070529

Ravi Jain

Chief financial officer

Debab

ta Sarkar

Chairinan
DIN: 02502618

Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 21, 2025




1D1. Eixplosives Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise staled)

I‘or the year ended

Notes

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1. Income
Revenue from operations 27 54,872.47 62,264.13
Other income 28 310.35 206.21
Total income 55,182.82 62,470.34
2. Iixpenses
Cost of materials consumed 29 44,514.08 50,440.71
Purchases of Stock-in-1rade 30 744.41 2,178.82
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 31 276.86 302.00
Employce benelits expense 32 3,092.12 3,081.86
Tinance cosls 33 1,574.38 1,789.90
Deprecialion and amorlisalion expense 34 697.04 614.73
Olher expenses 35 5,908.91 6,674.50
Total expenses 56,807.80 65,082.52
3. Loss before tax (1-2) (1,624.98) (2,612.18)
4, Tax expense

a) Current tax 21 - 0.64

b) Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 22 217.97 (525.29)
Total tax expense 217.97 (524.65)
5. Loss for the year (3-4) (1,842.95) (2,087.53)
6. Other comprehensive income

(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurementls gain on the defined benefit plans 39 (25.52) (18.26)
(ii) Income tax relating, to items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
- Remeasurements loss on the deflined benefit plans 23 6.12 4.59

‘Total other comprehensive income (19.10) (13.67)
7.Total comprehensive income for the year (5+6) (1,862.05) (2,101.20)
8. larnings per equily share (l'ace value of Rs.10/- cach)

Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 43 (23.43) (26.54)
Corporate information and material accounting policics 1&2

iF I

‘The noles referred to above form an integral part of (he financial statemenls

As per our report of even date allached

for HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountanls

[CAI Firm Registration number:10523W/W100048

Snchal Shah
Partner
Membership number: 01853

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IDL lixplosives Limited
CIN No. U281321G2010P1.C070529

l’:abhal 1{1
Whaoletime !)11 wlor
DIN: 106887

o

Ravi Jatn
Chief [inancial officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 21, 2025

Debabrata Sarkar
Chairman
1DIN: 02502618




IDL Iixplosives Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, excepl share dala and where otherwise staled)

A. Equily share capital As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 78,65,000 786.50 78,65,000 786.50
Changes in equity share capital during Lhe year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting vear 78,65,000 786.50 78,65,000 786.50
B. Other Equity
Other Equit Total
Retained carnings Securities Other comprehensive
Premium income - Equity portion
of other financial
instruments
Balance at March 31, 2023 436.05 1,724.25 114.04 2,274.34
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (2,087.53) - = (2,087.53)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability / asset, net of (13.67) - - (13.67)
tax cffect
'I'ransactions recorded directly in equity
Fair valuation of inter corporate loans 92.68 137.36 230.04
Delerred tax on [air valualion of inler corporate loans (54.92) - (21.36) (76.28)
Balance at March 31, 2024 (1,627.39) 1,724.25 230.04 326.90
Profit/ (Loss) [or the year (1,842.95) - = (1,842.95)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability /asset, ncl of (19.10) = = (19.10)
tax elfecl
"Transactions recorded directly in equity
Tair valuation of inler corporale loans 59.01 - (92.25) (33.24)
Delerred tax on fair valualion of inler corporate loans (14.85) - (23.64) (38.49)
Balance at March 31, 2025 (3,445.28) 1,724.25 114.15 (1,606.88)

Refer note 14 for nature and purpose of reserves

As per our report of even date altached

for IIARIBHAKIT & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registralion number:10523W/ W100048

N\

Snehal Shah
Partner
Membership number: 048539

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
IDL Explosives Limited
CIN No. U28132TG2010P1L.C070529

l’rabhnt l{a
Whaoletime ]Juu. i
DIN: 10688375

Debabrata Sarkar
Chairman
DIN: 02502618

Ravi Jain
Chief financial afficor
Place: Mumbai

Dale: May 21, 2025




IDL lixplosives Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

(a)

(B)

(©

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (1,624.98) (2,612.18)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 697.04 614.73
(Profit)/Loss on sale/wrile-off of property, plant and equipment (33.86) 57.25
Interest income (85.85) (86.28)
Finance costs 1,574.38 1,789.90
Provisions no longer required written back (46.90) (59.14)
Bad debts written off 5.08 10.54
Unrealized loss/ (gain) on foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 39.39 201.33
Operaling profit / (loss) before working capital changes 524.30 (83.85)
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
- (Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables and financial/ non-financial assets 3,039.13 4,197.45
- (Increase)/Decrease in invenlories 957.76 13,580.99
- Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables, other current liabilities and provisions 1,384.30 (12,294.88)
Cash (used in) / gencrated from operating activities 5,905.49 5,399.71
Income tax paid (net) (89.36) 180.80
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,816.13 5,580.51
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant & equipment (including capital advances) (1,254.19) (1,427.12)
Proceeds [rom sale of properly, plant and equipment 50.97 24.83
Interest received 51.90 110.48
Investments in bank deposits (10,969.91) (7,142.66)
Redemption/maturily of bank deposits 11,376.73 7,694.60
Net cash used in investing activities (744.50) (739.87)
Cash flow from financing activitics
Proceeds/ (repayment) of working capital borrowings (2,348.76) (3.416.22)
Tinance cosls paid (1,680.80) (1,840.52)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,029.56) (5,256.74)
Net Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,042.07 (416.10)
Cash and cash equivalenls al the beginning of the year 319.97 736.07
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (refer note below) 1,362.04 319.97




IDL Explosives Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note : Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 1.61 245
Balance with banks:
in current accounts 937.20 271.55
in EEFC accounts - -
in deposil accounts 423.23 45.97
Cash and cash equivalents included in note 11 1,362.04 319.97
Borrowings movement
Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the Balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising from
financing activities for movement in statement of cash flow are given below.
Long- term borrowings Short - term borrowings Total
As at March 31, 2023 3,011.76 14,574.93 17,586.69
Cash flow changes - (3,416.22) (3,416.22)
Non-cash changes (137.93) (143.30) (281.23)
As at March 31, 2024 2,873.83 11,015.41 13,889.24
Cash flow changes - (2,348.76) (2,348.76)
Non-cash changes 91.84 (165.43) (73.59)
As at March 31, 2025 2,965.67 8,501.22 11,466.89

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "indirecl method" as set out in Ind AS 7, "Stalement of Cash flows."

As per our report of even date attached

for HHARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI TFirm Registration number:10523W/W100048

g

Snehal Shah
Partuer
Membership number: 048539

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IDL Explosives Limited
CIN No. U28132TG2010P1.C070529

»- Qtz Q)
Prabhat I j-in
ector

Wholetime |
DIN: 10688375

Debakbfata Sarkar
Chairman
DIN: 02502618

Ravi Jain
Chief Financial Officor
Place: Mumbai

Dale: May 21, 2025




IDL Explosives Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

1 Company Overview

1.1 Company information:

IDL Explosives Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at IDL Road, Kukatpally, Hyderabad - 500
072, Telangana, The Company has been incorporated on 22 September 2010 under the erstwhile Companies Act, with the main object of carrying on the
business of Industrial explosives and Accessories.

1.2 Basis of preparation, Measurement and Material accounting policies:
A. Basis of preparation and statement of compliance:

a) Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) and other relevant provision of the Act.

b) These financial statements have been prepared for the Company on a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the
Company’s annual reporting date, March 31, 2025.

¢) The financial slalements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 21, 2025,
+ &) Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 2.
B. Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented
in Indian rupees have been rounded-off to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs except share data or as otherwise stated.

C. Basis of measurement:

The financial stalements have been prepared on Lhe historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) Fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined

benefit obligations

D. Use of estimates and judgement:

The preparation of these financial statements is in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS which requires the
management lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of those estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year in which changes are made,
il material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,

Information about areas of assumptions, estimation uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have the effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are:

Impairment of trade receivables

The Company has measured the lifetime expected credit loss by using practical expedients. It has accordingly used a provision matrix derived by using a
flow rate model to measure the expecled credit losses for trade receivables. Further, need for incremental provisions have been evaluated on a case to case
basis where forward looking information on the financial health of a customer is available and in cases where there is an ongoing litigation/ dispute.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in
change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assels and liabilities

Deferred lax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and
liabilitics and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent there is reasonable certainty of future taxable income which will be available against the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
deprecialion carry-forwards.




IDL Explesives Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Defined Dbenefit plans

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is delermined on the basis of acluarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate,
trends in salary escalation, actuarial rales and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds, The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit
obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions,
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required
to settle Lhe obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or a present obligalion that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to seitle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are nejther recognised nor disclosed in the financial
stalements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation lechniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of

inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

1.3 Measurement of fair values:

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.

Fair values are categorised inlo different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuation lechniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusied) in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either direclly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: inpuls for the asset or liability that are nol based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the

fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of Lhe fair value hierarchy as Lhe lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
2 Material accounting policies:
The accounling policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into cusrent and.non-current.




IDL Explosives Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indjan Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Assefs

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

ii) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) it is expected Lo be settled in the Company’s operating cycle;

if) it is held primarily for the purpose of being Iraded;

iii) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a
liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilites. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilites.

a, Foreign currency transactions:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dales of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising

.an foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless it relates to a long term foreign
currency monetary item.

Monetary assets and liubilities that are denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the balance sheet,
The resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless it relates to a long term foreign currency monetary item.

Non-monetary assets are recorded at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction,

b. Financial instruments:

i. Recognition and initial measurement:

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities are recognised are
initially recognised at fair value when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue,

e il
>




IDL Explosives Limited
Notes to the financial stalements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement:

Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI )- equity investment; or
- Fair value to profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to Lheir initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the conlractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding,

On initial recognilion of an cquity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured al amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative

financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meels the requirements to be measured
atamorlised cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interest income, [oreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in stalement of profit and loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI Thesc assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the invesiment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to
statement of profit and loss. :

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designaled upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Gains
or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Olher financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective inlerest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effeclive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or (where appropriale) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

iii. Derecognition:

Financial assels:
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the conbractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transierred

or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain contral of the financial
assel.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assels, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities:
The Company derecognises a (inancial liability when its contractual obligalions are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially

different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified lerms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss,




IDL Explosives Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

iv. Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a

legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Any
changes therein are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Derivatives are carried as financial asset when the fair value is positive and as
financial liability when fair value is negative.

<. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress:
i. Recognilion and measurement:

Property, plant and equipment:

Items of property, planl and equipment are measured al cost, which includes capitalised borrowing cosls, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulaled impairment losses, ifany'.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebales, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condilion for ils intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the itenv and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-conslrucled item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the ilem to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is localed

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
componentls) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profil and loss.

Capital work-in-progress:

Cost of assels not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet dale, is shown as capital work-in-progress. Advances given towards acquisition of
fixed assels oulstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as olher non-current assets.

ii. Subsequent expenditure:
Subsequent expendilure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation:

Deprecialion is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease

The eslimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are estimated by Lhe Management, which are equal to the life prescribed under the
Schedule IT of the Act.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusied if appropriate. Based on technical
evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on addilions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of),
d. Intangible assets:

i. Recognition:

Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulaled impairment losses,

ii. Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefils embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

&




IDL Explosives Limited
Notes lo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share dala or as otherwise stated)

iii, Amortisation:
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their esimated residual values over their eslimated useful lives using the straight-
line method, and is included in depieciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Asset Years
- Software 6

Amonlisalion method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.
e. Investment property:

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, an investment property is
measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cosl comprises purchase price, borrowing costs il capilalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the investment property to
its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

On disposal of investment property, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of
profitand loss.

The (air values of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values is determined either by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and
relevant professional qualificalion and has recenl experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued or stamp duty price
available on the government website/ with the registration and stamps department.

Disposals
An jtem of properly, plant and equipment and any significant part inilially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected {rom its use. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the

difference belween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the stalement of profit and loss on the date of
relirement or disposal.

(. Leases:

Company as a lessce:

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or conlains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identified asset for a period of lime in
exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i)
the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. '

At lhe date of commencement of the lease, the Caompany recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and
low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options lo extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised,

The ROU assets are inilially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to Lhe commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assels are depreciated from Lhe commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life or the underlying
asset, ROU assels are cvaluated for recoverabilily whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may nhot be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those fram other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liabilily is initially measured at amortized cost al the present value of the fulure lease payments, The lease payments are discounted using the
interesl rate implicit to Lhe lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
an extension or a terminalion oolion.

Company as a lessor:
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes Lo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

g- Invenlories:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cosl and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is determined on a transaction moving weighted average
basis, and includes expenditure in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present
location and condition. In case of manufactured invenlories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production overheads on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The net
realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished producls are not written down below cosl except in cases
where material prices have declined and il is eslimated that the cost of the finished producls will exceed their net realisable value,

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an ilem-by-item basis.
h. Impairment:

Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheel whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected
credit losses (ECL’) to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for trade receivables including unbilled
receivables and contract assets that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal Lo the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e, higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use)
is delermined on an individual assel basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit ‘{CGU’) to which the asset belongs

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated (o be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of Lhe asset (or CGU) is reduced o its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in Lhe statement of profit and loss

An assessinent Is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset neither exceeds its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the
carrying amount that would have been delermined, nel of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, Such
reversal is recognised in the statemenl of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revalualion increase. Goodwill has indefinite useful life and tesled for impairment annually.

i. Employee benefits:

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entily pays fixed contributions inlo a separate entity and will have no
legal or conslructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Company providing relirement benefit in Lhe form of provident fund and superannuation fund is a defined conlribution scheme. The contribulions
payable Lo the provident fund and superannuation fund are recognised as expenses, when an employee renders the related services. The Company has
no obligation, other than lhe conlribution payable to the funds.

Eligible employees of the company receive benefits from provident fund, which is defined conlribution plan. Both the eligible employees and the
company make monthly contribulions to the Government administered provident fund scheme equal to a specilied percentage of the eligible
employce's salary, Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered provident fund. The company
has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

Decfined benefit plans:

Gratuily liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the
end of each financial year. The parenl company has created an approved graluily fund, which has taken a group gratuily cum insurance policy with
Life Insurance Corparation of India (LIC), for fulure payment ol gratuity to the employees. The Company accounts for gratuity liability of its employees
an the basis of actuarial valualion carried out at the year end by an independent actuary. When the calculation results in a potential assel for the
Company, the recognised asset is limiled to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in fulure conlributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order Lo calculate lhe present value of economic benefils, consideralion is given lo
any minimum funding requirements,

Remeasurements of the nel defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding inlerest), are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit abligation
at the beginning of the annual period to the then-nel defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) during the period as a resull of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related (o defined benefit plans are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve months from the reporting date are classified as short-term employee benefits. An
employee who has rendered services to the Company during an accounting period, the Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as an expense or as required under Ind AS 19 which permits the inclusion of the
benefits in the cost to be recognised as an asset. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid after deducting any amount already paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the Company recognises that excess
as an asset / prepaid expense to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

Compensated absences:

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in fulure service periods or receive cash
compensation on lermination of employment. Since the compensaled absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of such
period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in
which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of actuatial valuation using the projected
unit credit method.

Bonus plans:

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonus. The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
contractual obligation.

j. Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances,
rebates, Goods and Service Taxes (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below.

Sale of goods:

The performance obligations in our contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on customer
terms. and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. Export incentives are
accounted for to the extent considered recoverable by the management.

Sales of services:
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed.

An estimate is made for powder factor or price fall clause provision and a corresponding liability is recognised for this amount using a best estimate
based on accumulated experience.

The Company estimates provision for powder factor on revenue from sale of products to certain customers which is generally the percentage of blast
output achieved al Lhe Llime of blasting of the products at the customer’s site. Powder factor is based on Lhe agreement with customer, volume of output
achieved at the sile, which is measured at a later date. Accordingly, the provision is made based on Lhe likely powder factor to be achieved on current
sales of products, which is reduced from the revenue for the period.

k. Recognition of interest income and dividend:

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis considering the carrying amount and the effective interest rate, Interest income is included
under the head ‘Other income’ in the statement of profit and loss

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established by the reporting date. Dividend income is included
under the head ‘Other income’ in the statement of profit and loss,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

1. Income-tax:

Income-tax comprises current and deferred lax. Il is recognised in statemenl of profit and loss except to the exlent that it relates to an item recognised
directly in equily or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax:
Currenl tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended 1o
realise the asset and settle the liabilily on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits,
Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of asscts or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable statement of profit and loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recenl losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to Lhe extent that it has sufficient taxable lemporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed al each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liabilily is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporling date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date,
to recover or seltle lhe carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if (here is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authorily on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assels and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

m. Borrowing cost:

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly
related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the loan,

Borrowing cosls, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from comnencement of activities relating to
construction/development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such asset is added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the slatement of profit and loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying assets is interrupted. Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

Interest expense on borrowings is recorded using the effeclive interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial assets. When
calculating the EIR, the Company eslimates he expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does nol
consider the expected credit losses.
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n. Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as provision are determined based on best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These
estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Onerous contracts:

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under Lhe contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating Lthe contrack and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Conlingencies:
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigations, assessments, fines and penalties are recognised when it is probable that a liability
has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably.

Contingent liabilities and continent assets:

A conlingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Conlingent assets has to be recogtiised in the financial statements in the period in which if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. Contingent assets are assessed continually and no such benefits were found (or the current financial year.

o. Earnings per share:

Basic Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluled earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic carnings per share and also the weighled average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilulive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at
a laler date. In computing diluted earnings per share, only polential equily shares thal are dilutive and that either reduces earnings per share or
increases loss per share are included. The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented
for the share splits.

p. Statement of Cash Flows:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature

and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associaled with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from regular revenue generating (opuerating activities), investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

q. Cash and cash equivalents:

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

1. Segment reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments separately for the purpose of making decision about the resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on the profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in
the financial statements, The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/ services.

s. Events after reporting date:

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such
events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

t. Application of new and amended standards:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to
Ind AS 116 - Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements,

u, Standards issued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, there are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on date.
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IDL Explosives Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4. Goodwill
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cost (Refer note below) 105.63 105.63
105.63 105.63
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of year 105.63 105.63
Impairment = -
Other adjustment = -
Balance at end of the year 105.63 105.63

Note: Impairment test for goodwill

Impairment testing for cash generating unit containing goodwill.

The Company has identified and noted thal there are no reportable segments as the CGUs other than explosive segmenl. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Company's operaling division which represents the lowest level within
the Company at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which is not higher than the Company's operating
segment. The goodwill (with indefinite life) acquired through business combination has been allocated to "Explosives" segment of
the Company. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March 2025 is Rs. 105.63 (31 March 2024: Rs. 105.63).

Following key assumptions were considered while performing impairment testing:

Annual growth rate for 5 years (Average): 8.9% (Previous Year: 12.5%)

Terminal value growth rate: 5% ( Previous Year: 5%)

Budgeted EBITDA growth rate for 5 years : 1.9% to 4.8% ( Previous Year: 7.53%)
Weighted average cost of capital % (WACC) post tax: 11.7% ( Previous Year: 7.33%)

The cash flow projections include specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal growth rale
has been determined based on the management's estimate of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growth rale, consistent with
the assumptions that a market participant would make.

The Company has performed sensitivity analysis around the base assumptions and has concluded that no reasonable change in key

assumptions would result in the recoverable amount of the CGU to be less than the carrying value. Accordingly, no impairment has
been recognised for FY 2024-2025.

5. Other intangible assets

Softwarc
I. Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2023 80.33
Additions 1.64
Disposals (0.53)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 81.44
Balance as at April 1, 2024 81.44
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 81.44
II. Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Balance as at April 1, 2023 33.73
Amortisation for the year 10.03
Disposals (0.53)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 43.23
Balance as at April 1, 2024 43.23
Amortisation for the year 9.17
Disposals =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 52.40
Net Carrying Amount Software
Balance as at March 31, 2024 38.21

Balance as at March 31, 2025 29.04




IDL Explosives Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

6. Non Current Investments

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investment in Equity Insbruments (Unquoted)
(At fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL))
500 shares of Rs.10 each in IDL Chemicals Employees Credit Co-Operative Society 0.37 0.37
Less: Provision for Impairment in Value of Investments (0.37) (0.37)
Aggregate amount of unquoted invesiments 037 0.37
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof = -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments. 0.37 0.37
7. Other financial assets
(Unsecured considered good)
Non-Current
Security deposits
Considered good 41.09 28.63
Credit impaired 27.36 55.61
68.45 84.24
Less : Loss Allowance (27.36) (55.61)
41.09 28.63
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date * 158.47 220.80
Interest on bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date 17.29 -
216.85 249.43
* Note: Bank deposits maturing after 12 months
The Company held cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of Rs. 158.47 as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 220.80).
The credit worthiness of banks and financial institutions is evaluated by management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.
Current
Security deposits
Considered good 73.06 60.58
Credit impaired - -
73.06 60.58
Less : Loss Allowance - .
73.06 60.58
Derivative financial asset - 8.29
Interest accrued on deposits 16.66 -
§9.72 68.87

1. The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to Other financial assets are disclosed in Note 36.

2. Refer note 25 for details of current assets hypothecated against borrowings of the Company.

3. There are no amounts due from. directors or entities in which directors are interested.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

8. Other assets

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current (Unsecured considered good)
Capital advances 2.03 143.41
Other than capital advances
- Prepayments 13.35 31.06
- Balances with government authorities 8.75 31.45
24.13 205.92
Current (Unsecured considered good):
Prepayments 145.87 59.07
Balances with government authorities 1,119.16 1,269.49
Advances to employees 140 4.27
Advances to Suppliers and Service providers
- Secured, considered good - -
- Unsecured, considered good 237.39 283.03
- Unsecured, considered doubtful 1549 -
Less : Loss allowances (15.49) -
1,503.82 1,615.86
9. Inventories
Raw materials 2,258.90 2,959.89
Raw materials in transit 80.74 -
Work-in-progress 417.72 371.44
Finished goods 181.74 157.91
Finished goods-in-Transit — 112.88
Stock-in-Trade 85.44 274.82
Stock-in-Trade in transit - 44.71
Stores and Spares 134.70 171.15
Packing Material 170.95 195.15
3,330.19 4,287.95
Note:

1. Refer note 25 for details of current assets hypothecated against borrowings of the Company

2. Amount of write down of inventories to net realisable value amounting to Rs. 32.35 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 35.78). The write down

are included in changes of finished goods.
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Notes forming part of the financijal statements {or the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

10. Trade receivables

Asal As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
-considered good - Secured - -
-considered good - Unsecured 3,768.31 6,666.46
-which have significant increase in credit risk 52.43 50.95
Less: Loss allowance (52.43) (50.95)
- credit impaired 518.94 536.91
Less: Loss allowance (518.94) (536.91)
3,768.31 6,666.46
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
NotDue | €5 than | 6 months 1-2years | 23 years More than 3 Total
6 months -1year years
(RO heSRatec T e RceivablEs™ 2,975.83 57674 | 13952 7171 451 2 3,768.31
considered good
(ii) ‘Undlspute'd T‘r'ade R.ecelvablfes I B 21.50 1041 12,97 347 4.06 5243
which have significant increase in credit risk
(iii) I{n.dlsplfted Trade Receivables - . 126 43.41 3.62 13.88 52.99 115.16
Credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- B B ~
considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - ) B B B B
which have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) PlSPUtEl:i Trade Receivables - : . - o . 403.78 103.78
credit Impaired
2,975.83 599.52 193.34 88.30 21.86 460.83 4,339.68
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - 2.78 53.82 16.59 17.35 460.83 571.37
Net Trade Receivables 3,768.31
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following perinds from due date of payment
Particul ha
articulars R — Less than 6 months 1-2years | 2-3years More than 3 Total
6 months -1 year years
R b CL=ivaCIC s 5089.54 1,455.76 99.06| 1857 3.53 . 6,666.46
considered good
(if) Undisputed Trade Receivables - . 2054 613 231 262 19.35 50.95
which have significant increase in credit risk
(ifi) Undisputed Trade Receivables - : 0.61 015 1577 105.90 10.70 133.13
Credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- .
considered good h - - S
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - B B B
which have significant increase in credit risk : B
(vi) D‘lsputec.i Trade Receivables — ; R i ) i 103.78 103.78
credit Impaired
5,089.54 1.476.91 105.34 36.65 112.05 433.83 7,254.32
Less: Allowance (or doubtful trade receivables ~ 21.15 6.28 18.08 108.52 433.83 587.86
Nel Trade Receivables 6,666.46

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 36,
For details of current assets hy pothecated against borrowings of the Company refer note 25. ’
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
11. Cash and cash equivalents *
Cash on hand 161 2.45
Balances with Banks
- Current accounts 937.20 271.55
- Deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 423.23 45.97
1,362.04 319.97
12, Other Bank balances *
Bank deposits due to mature after 3 months of the original maturity but within 237.84 651.22
12 months of the reporting date.*
237.84 651.22

*Note: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

The Company held cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of Rs. 1,599.88 as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs.
971.19). The credit worthiness of banks and financial institutions is evaluated by management on an ongoing basis and is

considered to be good.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

13. Share capital

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Authorised :
10% Redeemable Preference shares of Rs.100 each 2,49,000 249.00 2,49,000 249 .00
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,000.00

1,02,49,000 1,249.00 1,02,49,000 1,249.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 78,65,000 786.50 78,65,000 786.50
Refer Note (viii) below

78,65,000 786.50 78,65,000 786.50

Notes:

i. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally
with regard to dividend and share in Company's residual assets. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share (by poll). In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ii. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
As at beginning of the year 78,65,000 786.50 78,65,000 786.50
Add : Issued and allotted during the year - - = "
As at end of the year 78,65,000 786.50 78,65,000 786.50

iii. Details of shares held by the Holding Company/ Promoters:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Number of % holding of
shares held equily shares

Number of % holding of
shares held  equity shares

Fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10 each

GOCL Corporation Limited (Holding company,/ Promoter) 78,65,000 100% 78,65,000 100%
iv. Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of % holding of ~ Number of % holding of

shares held equity shares  shares held  equity shares

Fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10 each

GOCL Corporation Limited (Holding company,/ Promoter) 78,65,000 100% 78,65,000 100%

v. During the five years ended March 31, 2025, there were no events of buy back of shares, rights issue of shares, issue of shares for
consideration other than cash and bonus shares issued by the Company.

vi. There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment.

vil. As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

viii. Subsequent to the Balance Sheet date, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company in their meeting held on May 2, 2025 has approved
divestment of entire equity shareholding held by the Parent Company in the Company in favour of Apollo Defence Industries Private Limited
(Apollo) for an aggregate consideration of Rs. 10,700 lakhs subject to obtaining certain approvals including from shareholders and [ulfilment of
other conditions of Share Purchase Agreement dated May 2, 2025 between the Company, Parent Company and Apollo.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

14. Other equity

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Securities premjium

Balance at beginning of the year 1,724.25 1,724.25
Add: Additions during the year - ' -
Balance at end of the year 1,724.25 1,724.25

Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of the year (1,627.39) 436.05
Add: Movement during the year (1,798.79) (2,049.77)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations, net of tax (19.10) (13.67)
Amount available for appropriations (3,445.28) (1,627.39)

Less: Appropriations
Dividend on equity shares = -

Balance at end of the year (3,445.28) (1,627.39)
Other comprehensive income

Equity portion of other financial instruments

Balance at beginning of the year 230.04 114.04
Add: Change in fair value, net of tax (115.89) 116.00
Less: Ulilisation = =

Tolal other comprehensive income 114.15 230.04
Total other equity (1,606.88) 326.90

Security premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings:

Retained earnings are profits that the company has earned till date less dividend or other distributions paid to share holders
and also includes any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumption or experience adjustments
within the plans.

Equity portion of other financial instruments:
Represents equity component on fair valuation of Inter corporate loans.

15. Non-current borrowings

Unsecured

Loans

- from Holding Company 2,965.67 2,873.83

2,965.67 2,873.83
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Related party Loans

Nature of Security & Terms of Repayment :

Inter-Corporate Loan (ICL) of Rs. 3,103.87 reported at discounted value of Rs. 2,965.67 (As at 31st March 2024: Rs. 2,873_83)
obtained from holding company which is repayable by April 1, 2027. Carries an Interest rate of 8.40% per annum (2023-24:

8.25%10 8.40% per annum). The above ICL has been disclosed at fair value.

Inter-Corporate Loan (ICL) outstanding of Rs. 3,103.87 reported at a discounted value of Rs. 2,965.67 is disclosed under Note 40:

Related Party Disclosures.

16. Other current financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Payable to capital Trade Payable other than dues to Micro and small enterprise 59.42 15.55
Forward derivative liability 29.25 -
Payable to customers 1,102.01 1,208.17
Employee payable 182.96 199.50
Security deposits 238.44 118.00
1,612.08 1,541.22
17. Non current provisions
Employee benefits
- Compensated absences (Refer Note 39) 88.02 91.43
- Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 190.85 187.88
278.87 279.31
18. Current provisions
Employee benefits
- Compensated absences (Refer Note 39) 35.00 33.67
- Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 70.59 63.57
105.59 97.24
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Income taxes
19. Deferred tax balance

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax Assct/ (liabilities) 1,052.52 1,302 56
1,052.52 1,302.56
2024-25 Opening Recognised in Recognised in Other Recognised directly Closing balance
Balance profit or loss comprehensive in equity
ncome
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to
Depreciation & amortization (399.89) 36.80 - - (363.09)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 94.76 213 - 96.89
Provision for doublful receivables / advances 53.81 100.78 154.59
Indexation benefit on land 5.65 0.42 - - 6.07
Fair valuation of inter corporate loans - 14.85 - (38.49) (23.64)
Business Loss (refer note below) 1,291.17 (502.90) - 2 788.27
Unabsorbed Depreciation 255.03 129.95 - - 384.98
Others 2.03 - 6.42 - 8.45
1,302.56 (217.97) 6.42 (38.49) 1,052.52
Note:

Basis the business projections for the period April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030 which have considered the strategic business decisions and initiatives, and on
consideration of prudence, the Company has reversed the deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses to the extent of Rs, 502.90 during the current

financial year.
2023-24 Opening Recognised in  Recognised in Other Recognised directly Closing balance
Balance profit or loss comprehensive in equity
income

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation Lo
Depreciation & Amortization (445.62) 4573 - - (399.89)
Remeasurement defined benefit plan 75.76 19.00 - - 94.76
Provision for Doubtful Receivables / Advances 56.37 (2.56) - - 53.81
Indexation benefit on land 5.18 047 - - 5.65
Fair valuation of Inter corporate loans 77.08 - - (77.08) -
Business Loss 951.85 339.32 = - 1,291.17
Unabsorbed Depreciation 13171 123.32 - 255.03
Others (2.56) - 4.59 - 2.03

849.77 525.28 4.59 (77.08) 1,302.56
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

20, Income tax assets and liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income tax assets (Net) 282.35 192.34
282.35 192,34
21. Tax Expense
Recognised in statement of profit and loss
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax
In respect of the current year - -
In respect of prior years = 0.64
= 0.64
22, Deferred tax expense/ (Income)
Recognised in statement of profit and loss
- On account of temporary differences between
carrying value and corresponding tax bases 217.97 (525.29)
217.97 (525.29)
23. Recognised in Other comprehensive Income
Deferred tax
Recognised in statement of profit and loss
- On account of temporary differences between
. : 6.42 4.59
carrying value and corresponding tax bases
6.42 4.59

The Income tax cxpense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows

For the year ended

Tor the yecar ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax (1,624.98) (2,612.18)
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% - -
Tax relating to earlier years - 0.64
Deferred tax 217.97 (525.29)
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit or loss 217.97 (524.65)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

24. Other liabilities

Current

Advance from customers 19.22 64.51

Stalutory remittances (PF, TDS, TCS and ESI etc.,) 70.31 72.83

89.53 137.34
25. Current borrowings

Secured - at amortised cost

From banks (refer note below)

Cash Credit - 580.16

Buyers Credit / Accepted Creditors 2,316.85 4,885.45

Unsecured - at Amortised cost

Loan from Holding Company 6,000.00 5,200.00

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings* 184.37 349.80
8,501.22 11,015.41

Security/Terms and Conditions of Repayment :

Working capital and cash credit facilities are availed from RBL Bank Limited, State Bank of India, Yes Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited and
IDBI Bank limited. These facilities are secured by first pari passu charge on entire current assets of the Company and second pari passu charge
on the fixed assets of the Company (movable & imumovable) of the Company present and future except those specifically charged Lo
equipment lenders. The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of 9.75 % to 11.85% per annum (2023-24: 7.90% Lo
10.80%).

Buyer's credit facilities are availed through from RBL Bank Limited, Yes bank limited, State Bank of India and IDBI bank limited. The Tenure
ranges from 110 days to 180 days and carries an interest rate of 548% to 6.05% per annum (2023-24: 5.38% to 6.10%). These facililies are part of
the working capital facilities which are secured by first pari passu charge on entire cwrent assets of the Company and second pari passu

charge on the fixed assets (movable & immovable) of the Company present and future except those specifically charged o equipment
lenders.

* Intercst accrued but not due on borrowing includes of Rs. 184.37 as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 297.98) is disclosed under Note 40:
Related Party Disclosures.
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26. Trade Payables

A5 at Asar
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Payables
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 893.89 504.9¢6
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5,305.64 4,336.92
6,199.53 4,841.88
Trade payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025
. Ouistanding for (ollowing periods from due date of payment
Earticulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 893.89 = = - 893.89
(ii) Others 4,556.40 4.53 44.04 28.09 4,633.06
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues-Others - = = = -
{v) Unbilled 484.45 21.39 9.71 157.03 672.58
5,4934.74 25.92 53.75 185.12 6,199.53
As at March 31, 2024
. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Tolal
(i) MSME 504.96 = - 504.96
(ii) Others 3,464.67 35.03 82.70 484 3,587.24
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - = -
(iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - 81.81 81.81
{v) Unbilled 492.06 20.94 5.60 149.27 667.87
4,461.69 55.97 88.30 235.92 4,841.88
Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers
as at the end of the year
- Principal 809.47 504.96
- Interest 84.42 -
(b)the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day. = =
(c)the amount of interest due and payable {or the period of delay
in making payment (which have been paid bul beyond the
appointed day during the year ) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 . >
(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid; and 8442 "
(e)the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expendilure under section 23 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. e }

This informalion is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and has been determined Lo the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Auditors have placed reliance on such information provided by the

management.

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 36.2 (ii)

The company's exposure to related parlies amounling to Rs. 86,72 (As at 31st March 2024 of Rs. 971.17) is disclosed under Note No, 40 Relaled Party Disclosures.
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27. Revenue from operations

Yor the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of products 54,211,23 61,551.60
Service income 637.17 652.30
Other operating revenues 24.07 60.23
54,872.47 62,264.13
a. Revenuce disaggregation by geography:
India 53,752.02 59,923.04
Rest of the world 1,12045 2,341.09
54,872.47 62,264.13
b. Reconciliation of revenue with contract price
Contract price 54,872.47 62,264.13
Less: Quantity discounts - -
54,872.47 62,264.13
c. Changes in contract liabilities:
Balance at the beginning of the year 64.51 36.89
Less:- Amount recognised as revenue/ other adjustments during the year (61.29) (36.89)
Add:- Amount received during the year 16.00 64.51
Balance at the end of the year 19.22 64.51
Lxpected revenue recognition from remaining performance obligations:
- Within one year 19.22 64.51
- More than one year - -
19.22 64.51
d. Contract balances:
Trade receivables 3,768.31 6,666.46
Contract liabilities 19.22 64.51

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. Conltract liabilities include advance from customers.

e. Performance obligation:

In relation to information about Company’s performance obligations in contracts with customers [refer note 2(j)].

28. Other income
Interest income on
- Deposils with Banks
- Others
Others
- Duly drawback on exports
- Provisions no longer required written back (Net)
- Provision for doubtful debts writlen back (Net)
- Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation
- Claims received
- Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
- Miscellaneous income

29, Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing, stock

30. Purchases of stock in trade
Accessories
Detonating fuse
Boosters
Others

31. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Opening Stock:
-Finished goods
-Stock-in-lrade
-Work-in-progress

Closing stock:
-Finished goods
-Stock-in-trade
-Work-in-progress

Net (increase) / decrease

82.40 63.97
3.45 2231
16.72 25.22
18.48 52.90
28.42 6.25
71.06 -
5.50 -
33.86 -
50.46 35.56
310.35 206.21
2,959.89 16,114.29
43,893.83 37,286.31
2,339.64 2,959.89
44,514.08 50,440.71
198.37 82213
221.32 1,029.71
- 40.30
324.72 286.68
744.41 2,178.82
270.79 273.82
319.53 221.48
371.44 768.46
961.76 1,263.76
181.74 270.79
85.44 319,53
417.72 371.44
684.90 961.76
276.86 302.00
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32. Employee benefits expense

TFor the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages (including bonus) * 2,594.24 2,598.99
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 39) 288.77 260.40
Gratuity expense (Refer Nole 39) 34.48 27.51
Stalf welfare expenses 174.63 194.96
3,092.12 3,081.86
*'This includes conlract labour charges
33, Finance costs
Interest expense
- Interest on bank overdrafts and loans * 1,309.28 1,444.14
Other borrowing costs 265.10 345.76
1,574.38 1,789.90

* This includes interest on intercorporate loans amounting to Rs. 702.20 (31st March 2024: Rs. 562.08) disclosed under
Note 40 Related Party Disclosures.

34. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 687.87 604.70
Amortisalion of intangible assets 9.17 10.03
697.04 614.73

35. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares 153.89 234.37
Processing charges 310.32 282.38
Packing malerial consumed 1,002.23 1,126.53
Power and fuel 999.75 1,106.89
Rent (Refer note 42) 67.07 134.79
Rales and taxes 137.98 75.78
Insurance 150.03 161.49
Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery 201.90 188.69
- Buildings 18.26 53.29
Selling commission 8.12 7492
Travelling and conveyance 254.39 290.01
Communication cost 9.81 14.96
Distribution expenses 1,979.07 2,161.06
Printing and stalionery 17.29 16.91
Professional & consultancy charges 460.48 504.26
Directors' sitling fees (Refer note 40) 28.12 27.30
Loss on sale of properly, plant and equipment (net) - 57.25
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 44) = 11.11
Bad debts wrilten off 5.08 10.54
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note below) 14.29 14.61
Nel loss on foreign currency transactions and translation - 44.75
Miscellaneous expenses 90.83 82.61

5,908.91 6,674.50

Notes: Auditor's remuneration:

Slatutory audil 8.56 8.56
Limiled review 3.85 3.85
Tax audit 1.28 1.28
Other services 0.50 0.40
Reimbursement of expenses 0.10 0.52

14.29 14.61
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Note 36: Financial instruments disclosure:

Note 36.1: Fair Valuation Measurement Hierarchy:

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments. The fair value of all equity
instruments which are lraded in stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period and the mutual funds are valued using ¢losing
NAV. .

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments not actively traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entily specific estimates. If the significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

i) The Carrying values of current financial liabilities and current financial assets are taken as their fair value because of their short term nature.

ii) The Carrying values of Non-current financial liabilities and Non-current financial assets are taken as their fair value based on their discounted cash flows.

iif) The Company has used quoted markel price for determining fair value of investments in equity instruments and mutual funds.

iv) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation
technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the
company could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. as such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates
may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

v) There have been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

The following table shows the carrying amournts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

As at March 31, 2025
Carrying amount Fair Value
Total Carrying Quoted prices in Significant Significant
amount - at amortised | active markets |observable inputs| unobservable
cost (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
1] Financial Assets
A. |Financial assets not measured at Iair value
Other non- current financial assets 216.85 - - -
Trade Receivables 3,768.31 - - -
Cash and Cash equivalents 1,362.04 B - -
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash
equivalents 237.84 - - -
Other Current Financial Assels 89.72 - - =
5,674.76 - - -
II] |Financial Liabilities
A. |Financial liabilities not measured at Fair value
Non-current borrowings 2,965.67 - - 2,965.67
Current borrowings 8,501.22 - - -
Trade payables 6,199.53 - - -
Other current financial liabilities 1,612.08 - 29.25 -
19,278.49 - 29.25 2,965.67
For financial assets that are measured at fair value under Level 2 and Level 3, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values:

. As at
particulars March 31, 2025
Opening Balance 2,873.83
Addition -
Adjustment during the year 91.84
Repaid during the year =
Closing Balance 2,965.67
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As at March 31, 2024
Carrying amount Fair Value
Total Carrying Quoted prices in Significant Significant
amount - at amortised | active markets |observable inputs| unobservable
cost (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
I Financial Assets
A. |Financial assets not measured at Fair value
Other non- current financial assets 249.43 = # =
Trade Receivables 6,666.46 - =
Cash and Cash equivalents 319.97 - -
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash 651.22 9 -
equivalents
Other Current Financial Assets 60.58 = 8.29
7,947.67 - 8.29 -
II}  |Financial Liabilities
A. |Financial liabilities not mecasured at Fair value
Non-current borrowings 2,873.83 - - 2,873.83
Current - borrowings 11,015.41 - -
Trade payables 4,841.87 - - -
Other current financial liabilities 1,541.22 - - -
20,272.34 - - 2,873.83
For financial assets thal are measured at fair value under Level 2 and Level 3, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values;
Particulars Asat
March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 3,011.76
Addition -
Adjustment during the year 137.93
Repaid during the year -
Closing Balance 2,873.83

s

'l "=
—

o
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Note 36.2: Financial risk management"

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments
(i) Credil risk

(if) Liquidity risk

(iii) Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and Company's activities.

The Company's audil committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's Risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its
oversighl role by inlernal audil. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the resulls
of which are revorted to the audit commiltee.

(i) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counler-parly failure to repay or service debt according lo the contractual terms or obligations.
Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The entities
within the Company have a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter parties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally
consist of trade receivables, investments, cash and cash equivalents, derivatives provided by the Company. None of the financial instruments of the
Company result in material concentration of credit risk. The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk.

Trade receivables:

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer,
including, the defaull risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is
managed through credil approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date wilh the risk of default as at the dale of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supporlive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change to Lhe ability to meet its obligations actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the customer.

Ageing of receivables, net of allowances is given below:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 2,975.83 5,089.54
Financial assels thal are pasl due bul not impaired
Past due 0-30 days 304.97 1,031.29
Past due 31-60 days 67.12 373.04
Past due 61-90 days 253 5143
Past due over 90 days 417.86 121.16
Total past due but not impaired 792.48 1,576.92
Which have significant increase in credit risk 52.43 50.95
Credit impaired 518.94 536.91
Loss allowance (571.37) (587.86)
Total 3,768.31 6,666.46
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Movement of loss allowance is as follows:

Asat Asat |
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning 587.86 594.11
Provision / (Reversal) during the year (16.49) (6.25)
|Balance at the end 571.37 587.86

As at March 31, 2025 the Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and loans are majorly towards industrial customers.

Cash and bank balances:

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Other financial assets:

There is no significant loss allowance for other financial assets.

(ii) Liquidity risk:

Liquidily risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation. The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as
well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the
Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturity of financial liabilities:

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are
gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payment on term loans and excludes impact of netting arrangements (if any):

As at March 31, 2025

Conlractual cash flows Carrying value | Less than1year | 1-2 years | 2-5yecars | 5-10 years Later Total
Non-derivative financial liabilitics
Borrowings including interest thereon 11,466.89 8,501.22 E 2,965.67 B - 11,466.89
Trade payables 6,199.53 6,199.53 - - - - 6,199.53
Other current financial {iabilities 1,612.08 1,612.08 - - - 1,612.08
As at March 31, 2024

Contractual cash flows Carrying value | Less than1year | 1-2 years 2-5 years | 5-10 years Later Total
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings including interest thereon 13,889.24 11,015.41 2,873.83 - - 13,889.24
Trade payables 4,841.88 4,841.88 - - - - 4,841.88
Other current financial liabilities 1,541.23 1,541.23 - - - - 1,541.23

(iii) Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value
of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity: prices, equity prices and other
market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including deposits,
foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings.

(iii) (a) Foreign Currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign currency borrowings,
imporl of raw materials, and exports of finished goods. The currency in which these transaction are majorly denominated as USD. The Company evaluates
exchange rate exposure arising, from foreign currency transaclions.
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The following table analyses foreign currency risk from non derivative financial instruments:

Foreign Currency Risk:

(INR equivalent of USD and AED)

As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Asscts:
Cash and Bank balances
- EEFC balance - =
Trade receivables 29.07 615.17
Advance to Suppliers 28.44 276.28
57.51 891.45
Liabilities:
Trade payables 2,666.82 8.33
Borrowings = 4,885.45
Other financial labilities - 51.83
) 2,666.82 4,945.61
Sensitivity analysis:
Impact on Foreign currency loss/ (pain) for the year on Rs. 1/- change in rates are:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
USD sensitivity 30.48 (30.48) 48.92 (48.92)
AED sensitivily - = 1.15 (1.15)
EUR sensitivity - - - -
Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss 30.48 (30.48) 50.07 (50.07)

(iii) (b) Interest rate risk:
Interest rale risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relate primarily to the Company's short term borrowing with floating interest rates.

Lixposure to interest rale risk:
The intercst rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows.

As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Financial liabilities
Fixed rale instruments 11,282.52 8,073.83
Variable rate instruments - 5,465.61

11,282.52 13,539.44
Inlerest rate Sensitivity:
Impact on Interest Expenses for the year on 1% change in interest rate:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase l Decrease

Impact on Statement on Profit and Loss - - 7215 (7215)
Impact on Equity, net of tax - - 53.99 {53.99)

Note 37: Capital management:

The Company’s policy is to mainlain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence
and Lo sustain future development and growth of its business. In order to maintain the capital structure the Company monitors the return on capital, as well as the
level of dividends to equity shareholders. The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeg\iard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimise returns to all its shareholders, For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves and
debl includes borrowings.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio.

As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024

Total borrowings 11,466.89 13,889.24
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances 1,599.88 971.19
9.867.01 12,918.05

Equity (820.38) 1,113.40
Net debt lo equity ralio (12.03) 11.60

Note 38: Segmenl Information:

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way to report information on operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas,
and major customers. The Company operales solely in the business of manufacturing and selling of industrial explosives and its related accessories. The board of
direclors of the Company, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company’s performance and allocate
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators as a single unit. Therefore, based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on ‘Operaling
Segments’, the Group’s business aclivity fall within a single operating segment. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 are not applicable.
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Note 39: Assets and liabilities related to Employee benefits:

a) Defined contribution plans:

The Company has recognised the following amounts in Note 32 of financial statements:

For the Year ended For the Yecar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provident fund 227.63 189.00
Superannuation and others 61.14 71.40
Total 288.77 260.40

b) Defined Bencfit Plans - Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. It entitles an employee, who has rendered at least
five years of conlinuous scrvice, Lo graluily al the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based
on the rale of wages last drawn by the employec concerned.

Inherent risk:
The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risk pertaining to the plan. In particular, this
exposes the Company, Lo acluarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets. This
may resull in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject Lo
longevity risk.

The following table sels forth the status of the Graluity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the balance sheet and statement of profit and
loss:

(i) Amounts recognised in Note 17 and 18 of financial statements:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Present value of Un-funded obligation 261.44 251.45
- Current 70.59 63.57
- Non currenl 190.85 187.88
(ii) Amounts recognised in Nolte 32 of financial statements is as follows:
Current service cost 18.77 14,86
Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 15.71 12.65
Total 34.48 27.51
(iii) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is as follows:
Experience adjustments 14.29 10.36
Remeasurements during the period due to:
Changes in financial assumptions 11.23 7.90
Total 25.52] 18.26
(iv) Reconciliation of opening and ¢losing balances of the present value of obligations:
Opening defined benefit obligation 251.45 198.77
Currenl service cost 18.77 14.86
Interesl cost 15.71 12.65
Remeasuremenls due Lo:
Changes in financial assum plions 25.52 18.26
Benefits paid (52.65) (34.14)
Liabilities assumed/ (settled) 2.64 41.05
Closing defined benefit obligation 261.44 251.45
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(v) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets:

Opening fair value of plan assets - -
Employer contributions 52.65 34.14
Benefits paid (52.63) (34.14)
Closing (air valuce of plan assets - -
(vi) Sensitivity Analysis:
The following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on
account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by (0.5%.
As at March 31, 2025

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (4.98) 518
Expected salary growth 5.02 (4.88)

As at March 31, 2024

Increase Decrease
Discounl rate (4.96) 5.16
Expecled salary growth 5.07 (4.91)
(vii) Principal actuarial assumptions used:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Discount rates 6.55% 7.15%
Expected salary increase rates 9.28% . 8.54%
Attrition rate 15.10% 12.38%
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields on Indian government securilies as at the balance sheet date from the estimated term of the
obligations. The estimales of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation take into account factors like inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Assumptions regarding future mortalily and experience are set in accordance with published rates under Indian assured life's mortality 2012-2014 Ult table.

(viii} Expected future cash flows:

The expected future cash flows in respect of graluity as at Balance sheet dates were as follows (undiscounted):

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
in Next 1 year 70.59 63.57
in Next 2 year 43.72 50.01
in Next 3 year 56.83 3258
in Next 4 year 22,37 48.37
in Next 5 year 23.79 16.52
Therealter 133.05 142.61
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(ix) As at March 31, 2025, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3.88 years (March 31, 2024 : 4.02 years).

(%) Risk exposure

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory frame work which may vary over time. Thus, the
Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of
providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non-availability of enough cash /
cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation

will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of
actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions.

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 (as amended from time to time) and
Company’s Schemes for different category of employees. There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-outs.

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to the market risk
for volatilities/ fall in interest rate.

¢) Defined Benefit Plans - Compensated absences

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Net Liability (Amounls recognised in Note 17 and 18 of financial statements)
- Current 35.00 33.67
- Non current 88.02 91.43
Total 123.02 125.10

The principal actuarial assumptions used for the computation of defined plan equally apply to the computation of long term compensated absences and are
accordingly considered in the estimation of the long term benefit. The compensated absences charged/(written back) in the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended March 31, 2025 based on actuarial valuation is of Rs. (2.08) (March 31, 2024 Rs. 22.83).
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Note 40: Related Party Disclosures:

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship

(a) List of rclated parties where control exists
Ultimale Iolding Company
Inlermediary Ultimate [Tolding Company

ITolding Company

(b) Other related parties where lransactions have taken place during
the year/balances exists at yecar end

(i) Key Managerial Personnel

(ii) lellow Subsidiarics

10

11

Amas Holding SPT
Hinduja Capilal Limited
GOCL Corporation Limited

Mr. Debabrata Sarkar

Chairman

Mr. Pankaj Kumar
Managing Director
(Resigned w.e.f. July 01, 2024)

Ms. Kanchan Chitale
Independent Director

(Resigned w.e.f. June 25, 2024)

Mr. Tapas Kumar Nag
Independent Director

Mr. Sudhanshu Tripathi
Non Execulive Director

Mr. Amar Chintopanth
Additional Independent Director

Prabhat Ranjan

Whole Time Director
(Appointed w.e.f. July 01, 2024)

Ms. P.B.Malhasri

Additional Director
(Appointed w.e.f. January 15, 2025)

Mr. Ravi Jain

Chief [financial Officer

Mr. Mahesh Inani

Company Secrelary

(Resigned w.e.l. April 30, 2024)

Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwary
Company Secrclary

(Appointed w.e.[. September 13, 2024)

Gulf Oil TLubricants India Limited

Ashok Leyland Limited
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b) Transactions with related parties:

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

i) Holding Company - GOCL Corporation Limited
Sales
a) Traded goods
b) Service Income
Traded goods destruction service

Markeling fee

26.98

235.01

118.00

6.79
461.00

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Purchases of

a) Accessories 617.73 2,178.81

b) Raw material 12.55 140.04

¢) Capital items 191.03 221.00

d) Export Licences - 20.68
Expenses

a) IT & Infrastructure facililies fee 48.00 48.00

b) Managerial services fee 246.00 310.80

c) Interest on ICL 702.20 562.08

d) Renl 7.99 7.81
Others

a) ICL availed during the year 7,600.00 8,870.00

b) ICL repaid during the year 6,800.00 3,670.00
ii) Gulf Oil Lubricants India Limited

a) Purchase of Base oil and others 547 12.91
iii) Directors - Sitting fees 28.12 27.30

Note:

(i) No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or privale companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a

director or a member.

(ii) The lransactions with relaled parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those thal prevail in

arm’s length transactions with other vendors.

) "The Company has the following dues from / to related partics:

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Amounts payable to Holding Company - GOCIL Corporation Limited

a) against purchase of Accessories 86.72 971.17
b) againsl interest accrued on ICL 184.37 297.98
c) against ICL * 8,965.67 8,073.83
* Movement of ICL

Opening Balance 8,073.83 3,011.76
Availed during the year 7,600.00 8,870.00
Adjustiment during the year (91.84) 137.93
Repaid during the year 6,800.00 3,670.00
Closing Balance 8,965.67 8.073.83
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Note 41: Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for):

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(I) Contingent liabilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:
- Sales Tax 26.18 26.18
- Entry Tax 29.18 29.18
~ Goods and Service Tax 4.08 65.51
- Income tax 3,175.50 9.06
(II) Capital and other commitments
Lstimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [net of Capital advance Rs. 1,334.91 526.03
2.03 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 143.41)]

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has
reviewed and ensured thal there are no material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts which needs to be provided for in the books of account.

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations including legal proceedings initiated in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not
expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material or adverse effect on its financial position and accordingly no adjustment in respect thereof is
expected.

Coal India (CII) had vide their letter dated July 02, 2024 barred the Company from award of any contract for the period of two years, due lo not
meeting a lender condition of stipulated local content in the supplies. However, this will not affect current running contracts with CIL which are
effective up to May’25 [or supply of cartridge explosives and accessories and up to October’25 for supply of bulk explosives, respectively. The Company
had made an application to CIL lo reconsider and subsequently approached to Hon'ble High Court in this regard.

Hon'ble High Court had further directed to CIL to reconsider the application of the Company, however CIL, vide its letter dated May 2, 2025 have
maintained stalus quo on the matter. In this regard, the management is of the opinion that CIL’s reasoned order has not adhered to the
crileria/ guidelines laid down by the Hon’ble High Court and therefore the Company has filed an appeal in this regard. The management is of the view
that there would not be any significant financial implication arising out of ban imposed by CIL.

Nate 42: Leases:

a. Leases as lessece

Lease payments made under operaling leases aggregaling Rs. 67.07 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 134.79) have been recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and lLoss. The company does not have any non cancellable operating leases.

b. Leases as lessor

In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ and amendments to certain Ind AS. The
Standard/amendments are applicable to the Company with effect from 1 April 2019.

The Company had leased oul its {lal in Kolkata [or office purposes.

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss account
Income from lease of office included in Other income 27.55 26.25

ii) Future minimum lease receivables under non cancellable operating lease of flal for office
0-1Year
1-5Years
More than 5 Years

There are no risks associated with any rights the Company retains on the underlying assets.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)

All amounis are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 43: Earning per share (ILPS):

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a. Profit/ (loss) for the year (1,842.95) (2,087.53)
b. Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each outstanding as at beginning and end of the 78,65,000 78,65,000
Earnings per Share
c. Basic and Diluted - [a]/[b] - (Rs.) (23.43) (26.54)

Note 44: Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

As per seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) Comumittee has been formed by the Company. The proposed
areas for CSR activities, as per the CSR policy of the Company are promotion of education, rural development activities, medical facilities, employment
and ensuring environmental sustainability which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. Expenditure incurred under Section 135 of

the Companies Act, 2013 on CSR activities are as below:

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross amount required to be spend by the Company during the year =
Amount approved by the Board to spent during the year - 19.00
Amount spent during the year - 11.11
Amount spent in cash:
(i) Construclion/acquisilion of any asset = 0.20
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above - 10.91
Amount yet to be paid: - -
Total amount spent - 11.11
Details related to spent obligations
Promotion of Education and Skill development - 10.91
Provision of Drinking water facilities - 0.20
Total amount spent - 11.11
Details of Lixcess amount spent
Opening Balance 1141 0.30
Amount required to be spent during the year - =
Amount spent during the year - 11.11
Closing Balance 1141 11.41
Details of ongoing CSR projects under section 135(6) of the Act (The Company does not have any ongoing CSR projects)
For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
5 C _
Balance as at April 1 With the Company
In separate CSR Unspent Account = =
Amounl required to be spend during the year - =
From the Company's bank account - 1111

Amount spent during the year

From separate unspent CSR unspent

account

Balance as at March 31

With the Company

In separate CSR Unspent Account
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data unless otherwise stated)

Note 45 Other Financial Information (Ratios as per the Schedule III requirements)

a) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

As at and for the period

As at and for the period

ended March 31, 2025 ended March 31, 2024
Current Asset 10,291.92 13,610.33
Current Liabilities 16,507.95 17,633.09
Ratio 0.62 0.77
% Change from previous year -19%

b) Debt Equity Ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current

and non-current

borrowings.

Total Debt (D) 11,466.89 13,889.24
Total Equity (E) (820.38) 1,113.40
Ratio NA 1247
% Change from previous year NA

Ratio is not calculated as Net Worth of the Company is Negative

¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided Dby the Total interest and principal

repayments

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (1,842.95) (2,087.53)
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

- Depreciation and amortizations 697.04 614.73
- Finance cost 1,574.38 1,789.90
~(Profit)/ Loss on sale/write-off of property, plant and equipment (33.86) 57.25
Earnings available for debt service 394.61 374.35
Inlerest cost on borrowings 1,680.80 1,840.52
Principal repayments = #
Tolal interest and principal repayments 1,680.80 1,840.52
Ratio 0.23 0.20
% Change from previous year 15%

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Profit after tax divided by Equity

Profit/ (Loss) after Other Comprehensive Income (1,862.05) (2,101.20)
Average Shareholders Equity 146,51 2,087.11
Ralio NA -100.68%
Changes in basis points(bps) from year NA

% Cliange from previous vear NA

Ratio is not caleulated as Net Worth of the Company is Negalive,

¢) Inventory turnover ratio = Cost of Goods sold divided by Average Inventory

Cost of Goods sold 45,535.35 52,921.54
Average Inventory 3,809.07| 11,078 44
Rativ 11.95 478
% Change from previous year 150%

Reason for change mare than 25%: Tmpact on account of decrease in turnover and optimisation of inventory levels.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data unless otherwise stated)

f) Trade receivables turmover ratio = Credit sales divided by Average trade receivables

As at and for the period | As at and for the period
ended March 31, 2025 ended March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations 54,872.47 62,264.13
Average Trade Receivables 5,217.39 6,857.69
Ratio 10.52 9.08
% Change from previous year 16%
g)Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by Average trade payables
Credit Purchases 51,512.56 47,103.85
Average Trade Payables 5,520.70 10,363.43
Ratio 9.33 4.55
% Change from previous year 105%
Reason for chimgie more than 25%: Due to reduction in trade payables,
h) Net capital tumover ratio = Sales divided by Net working capital where net working capital = current asscts - current
liabilities.
Revenue from operations 54,872.47 62,264.13
Net working capital (Current assets - Current Liabilities) (6,216.03) (4,022.76)
Ratio (8.83) (15.48)
% Change from previous vear -43%

Reason for change more than 25%: Impact on account of losses due to decrease in turnover and increase in raw material prices.

i) Profit ratio = Profit after tax divided by Sales

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (1,842.95) (2,087.53)
Revenue from operations 54,872.47 62,264.13
Ratio -3.36% -3.35%
Changes in basis points {(bps) from previous period / vear (0.59)

% ChanMom previous year 0%

j) Return on Capital Lmployed= Famning before interest and taxes divided by Capital Employed

Tarning before interest and taxes (50.60) (822.28)
Tangibley Net worth (955.05) 969.56
Tulal Debl 11,466.89 13,889.24
Deferved tax liability - -
Total Capital Employed 10,511.84 14,858.80
Ratio = Earning before interest and taxes / Capital Employed -0.48% -5.53%
% Change from provious year -91%

Reason [or change more than 25%: Impact on account of losses for the year and decrease in Capital Employed.

k) Return on Investment (ROT) is not applicable as there are no investments made by the company

Note 46 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, Investments under Section 186

of Companics Act, 2013:

There are no loans given or guarantees given or security provided by the Company. For investments made by the Company,

refer Note 6 Investments,

Note 47 Going Concern Assumption

The Company is confident of achieving the positive aperating results in coming years although the Company has incurred loss
in the current financial year and net worth of the Company has been fully eroded as at as on March 31, 2025. Further
considering the business plan for the period April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030 and valuation of business carried out by an
Independent Valuer along with letter of financial support received from the Parent Company, the Company is confident of
meeting its obligations in near future and accordingly has prepared its financial statements on a going concern basis and no
adjustments are considered necessary. Attention is also invited to Note 13 (viii) in the financial statements regard to the
proposed sale of entire stake held in the Company by the Parent, after the close of the financial year.
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Note 48 Other statutory information
Other Statutory Information:

i. The Company do not have any Benami property and neither any proceedings have been initiated or is pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

ii. The Company has not come across any transaction occurred with struck-off companies under section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

iii. The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv. The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender during the
current year.

v. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

vi. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimale Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii, All quarterly returns or statements of current assets are filed by the company with banks or financial institutions and are in
agreement with the books of accounts,

viii. The loan has been utilized for the purpose for which it was obtained and no short term funds have been used for long term
purpose.

ix. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

x. There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.
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